
 
CITY OF ELKHORN 

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
May 6, 2024 - 5:30 pm or later, 

 depending upon the conclusion of the COW meeting 
Council Chambers, City Administration Offices, 311 Seymour Ct., Elkhorn, Wisconsin 

 
 

1) Call to Order 
2) Pledge of Allegiance 
3) Roll Call 
4) Public Comment Public comments are limited to three minutes each. The public may speak on any item of 

City concern whether or not the topic is included on this agenda. However, if the topic does not pertain to an 
item listed on the Council agenda, the Council is not permitted to address or discuss the matter during this 
meeting. Under open meeting laws, the Council must notice an item on the agenda to allow discussion on 
that matter. If Council is not permitted to discuss your concerns, your comments will be considered and may 
be placed on a future agenda for further discussion. 

5) Consent Agenda (One motion & a second will approve all of the following items listed. Any item may be 
pulled from the list and handled separately.)  
a) Council Meeting Minutes April 16, 2024  
b) Temporary Class “B” Beer licenses for the Walworth County Agricultural Society at the 

Walworth County Fairgrounds, Bull Riding on July 5 & 6, 2024; 4:00 pm -11:00 pm and July 7, 
2024; 1:00 pm - 9:00 pm 

c) Temporary Class “B” Beer license for the Walworth County Agricultural Society at the Walworth 
County Fairgrounds, Taco Fest on July 20, 2024; 11:00 am – 11:00 pm and July 21, 2024; 11:00 
am - 9:00 pm 

d) Beekeeping Permit Application for Javan Wehmeier at 147 N Water Crest Ct  
6) Report of City Officers  

a) Mayor 
i) Mayoral Appointments 

(1) Boards, Commissions & Liaisons 
(a) Police and Fire Commissioners: Craig Rasmussen – member 
(b) Board of Appeals: Tom Stotko, Dan Duchemin, Gary Welsh, James Boardman, Julie 

Taylor – members 
(c) Historic Preservation Commission: James Boardman - Plan Commission member, Julie 

Taylor, John Gunyon, Lisa Brellenthin, Gary Welsh, Jean Carroll - Citizen members 
b) City Administrator 

7) New Business 
a) Discussion and possible decision regarding amending 2024 budget to increase EEDA grant funds 

available by $32,546.75, which is the amount of unused EEDA grant funds in 2022-2023 
b) Discussion and possible decision regarding proposed Resolution No. 24-11: A Resolution 

Approving the Engagement Agreement with Pruitt, Ekes & Geary, S.C., as the Interim City 
Attorney for the City of Elkhorn 

c) Discussion and possible decision regarding proposed Ordinance No. 24-04: An Ordinance 
Amending Section 1.03(2)(h)1 of the City of Elkhorn Municipal Code regarding the Appointment 
of the City Attorney and other Attorneys [first and possible second reading] 



P a g e  | 2 
 

d) Discussion and possible decision regarding request for proposals for city attorney  
e) Discussion and possible decision regarding proposed Resolution 24-12: A Resolution Approving 

an Interfund Loan from the City Electric Fund to Tax Incremental District #4 
f) Discussion and possible decision regarding the Conditional Use Permit for Outdoor dining 

located at 1 N Lincoln Street. 
g) Discussion and possible decision regarding City participation in “No Mow” May [requested by 

Alderman Harkness] 
8) Adjourn into Closed Session  

a) Closed Session: The Common Council may entertain a motion to go into CLOSED SESSION 
pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85(1)(e) to deliberate on offers to purchase public 
property. 
i) Lot 72 (Tax Key YA 396900001) 

b) Closed Session: The Common Council may entertain a motion to go into CLOSED SESSION 
pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85(1)(c)—to consider the employment, promotion, 
compensation or performance evaluation of data of any public employee over which the 
governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility—and pursuant to 19.85(1)(f)—to 
consider financial, medical, social or personal histories or disciplinary data of specific persons, 
preliminary consideration of specific personnel problems or the investigation of charges against 
specific persons which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse 
effect upon the reputation of any person referred to in such histories or data, or involved in 
such problems or investigations.   
i) Review of findings from investigation ordered by Council on January 3, 2024 

c) Closed Session: The Common Council may entertain a motion to go into CLOSED SESSION 
pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85(1)(c) to consider the employment, promotion, 
compensation or performance evaluation of data of any public employee over which the 
governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. 
i) Conducting annual performance review of City Administrator Adam Swann 

9) Reconvene in Open Session for possible action on Closed Session items 
The Common Council shall RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION reserving the right to take action on 
the matters discussed in CLOSED SESSION and to move to the remaining meeting agenda(s) as 
posted 
a) Discussion and possible decision regarding offer to purchase public property 

i) Lot 72 (Tax Key YA 396900001) 
b) Discussion and possible decision regarding findings from investigation ordered by Council on 

January 3, 2024 
c) Discussion and possible decision regarding results of performance review of City Administrator 

Adam Swann 
10) Adjourn  

 
DATED at Elkhorn, Wisconsin, this 3rd day of May 2024  

 
Rebeca Perez, Deputy City Clerk  

 
Should you have any questions or comments regarding any items on this agenda, please contact the City Clerk’s office at 
(262) 723-2219. Upon reasonable notice to the City Clerk, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled 
individuals through appropriate aids and services. 
 



 
CITY OF ELKHORN COMMON COUNCIL 
ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING MINUTES 

April 16, 2024 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 311 SEYMOUR CT., ELKHORN, WI 53121 

 
The Common Council meeting was called to order by Council President Shiroda at 5:30 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Swearing in of Mayor Tim Shiroda, Alderpersons Ron Dunwiddie, Scott McClory, Kurt Harkness and 
Municipal Judge Lori Domino 
 
ROLL CALL 
Present: Mayor Tim Shiroda, Alderpersons Gary Lee Payson Jr., Ron Dunwiddie, Scott McClory, Ken Meinel, 
Kurt Harkness.  
Others present: City Administrator Adam Swann, Attorney Elaine Ekes, City Clerk Lacey Reynolds, Police 
Chief Joel Christensen, Director of Public Works Matthew Lindstrom, Interim Fire Chief Trent Eichmann, 
Finance Director Corrie Daly, Utility Field Office Coordinator Dawn Gall, City Engineer Mike Timmers, other 
interested persons. 
 
COUNCIL REORGANIZATION 
Election: Council President 
Motion (Meinel/McClory) to nominate Gary Lee Payson Jr. as Council President. Voice vote, all approved, 
motion carried. 
Official City Newspaper: Elkhorn Independent 
Motion (Payson Jr./Dunwiddie) to approve the Elkhorn Independent. Voice vote, all approved, motion 
carried.  
Resolution 24-10: Designating Depositories and Authorizing Withdrawal of City Monies 
Motion (McClory/Dunwiddie) to approve Resolution No. 24-10. Roll call vote: McClory, yes; Dunwiddie, yes; 
Payson Jr., yes; Harkness, yes; Meinel, yes. Motion carried.    
Mayoral Appointments 
City Attorney (interim): Pruitt, Ekes, & Geary, S.C.  
Motion (Dunwiddie/Meinel) to appoint Pruitt, Ekes, & Geary, S.C. as the interim City Attorney. Voice vote, 
all approved, motion carried.   
Council Committees 
Financial & Judicial: Gary Lee Payson, Jr. – Chair, Scott McClory, Ken Meinel 
Municipal Services & Utilities: Ken Meinel – Chair, Kurt Harkness, New Alderperson for Ward 1 
Public Safety: Ron Dunwiddie - Chair, Kurt Harkness, Gary Lee Payson, Jr. 
Human Resources: Scott McClory – Chair, Ron Dunwiddie, Gary Lee Payson Jr. 
Legislative & Regulatory: Ron Dunwiddie - Chair, Scott McClory, New Alderperson for Ward 1 
Motion (Payson Jr./Dunwiddie) to approve the listed committees. Voice vote, all approved, motion carried.   
Boards, Commissions & Liaisons 
Planning Commission - Members: Jason Hunter and James Boardman, Liaison: Ken Meinel 
Library - Member: Robert Kennedy (City of Elkhorn), Liaison: New Alderperson District 1  
Fire Advisory Board - Liaison: Kurt Hartness 
Board of Review - Member: Sarah Larsen, Alternate Member: Ken Gaudreau 
Motion (Meinel/McClory) to approve the listed boards, commissions and liaisons. Voice vote, all approved, 
motion carried.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 



City of Elkhorn Common Council Meeting, Page 2 
 

 

Motion (Dunwiddie/McClory) to approve the Council Meeting Minutes from April 3, 2024 and the special 
use permit for Wilson Farm Meats at Wilson’s Whistlestop – 20th Anniversary Celebration; June 1, 2024 
from 11:00 am to 3:00 pm. Voice vote, all approved, motion carried.  
 
Motion (Payson Jr./Dunwiddie) to approve Pay Request No. 7 from Rock Road Companies for the 2023 E. 
Centralia Street Reconstruction project in the amount of $94,128.53. Roll call vote: Payson Jr., yes; 
Dunwiddie, yes; McClory, yes; Meinel, yes; Harkness, yes. Motion carried. 
 
BILLS PAYABLE 
Motion (Dunwiddie/Meinel) to approve the City and Utility Bills in the amount of $2,072,759.14. Roll call 
vote: Dunwiddie, yes; Meinel, yes; Harkness, yes; McClory, yes; Payson Jr., yes. Motion carried.  
 
REPORT OF CITY OFFICERS 
MAYOR’S REPORT:  
Proclamation – May Mental Health Month. Mayor Shiroda declared May Mental Health Month and shared 
about events that will take place during the month of May. 
Recognition of Alderperson Karel Young for 6 years of dedicated service to the City of Elkhorn. Mayor 
Shiroda thanked Alderperson Young for her service to the City from 2018-2024.  
Swearing in of Interim Municipal Court Clerk Lacey L. Reynolds. Attorney Elaine Ekes swore in Interim 
Municipal Court Clerk Reynolds. 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT – Administrator Swann congratulated Municipal Court Clerk Last on her 
retirement. Swann reported work continues with Creekside on their mixed-use development near the 
DMV. Swann and grant writer Katie James met with Dominic Sergi regarding the new park on N. Wisconsin 
and staff will meet with the railroad regarding the crossing near the Creekside Community Development.   
 
REPORTS OF CITY BOARDS AND COMMUNITY PARTNERS 
Fire Advisory Board – will meet next Thursday. 
Library Board – Jennifer Wharton Youth Services Librarian reported for the month of March 18,000 
materials were checked out and 99 new library cards were issued. The library hosted an event with the 
author of the very hungry caterpillar and hosted the EASD Elementary art show. Library staff participated 
in the exhale market and the library building needs assessment is moving forward.  
Recreation Advisory Board – meeting tomorrow at 5:30 pm. 
Chamber of Commerce – no report. 
Community Grant Writer – Katie James reported she has been helping nonprofits in the area find funding. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Discussion and possible decision regarding Ordinance No. 24-03: an ordinance to rezone tax key parcel 
YVSE00001A, located at the intersection of County Hwy H and E Geneva St from B-2 to M-1 (second 
reading). Motion (Dunwiddie/McClory) to approve Ordinance No. 24-03: an ordinance to rezone tax key 
parcel YVSE00001A, located at the intersection of County Hwy H and E Geneva St from B-2 to M-1 (second 
reading). Voice vote, all approved, motion carried.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Discussion and possible decision regarding execution of Contract Change Order No. 5 for the E. Centralia 
Street Reconstruction project in the amount of $1,450.00. Motion (Payson Jr./Dunwiddie) to approve 
Contract Change Order No. 5 for the E. Centralia Street Reconstruction project in the amount of $1,450.00. 
Roll call vote: Payson Jr., yes; Dunwiddie, yes; McClory, yes; Meinel, yes; Harkness, yes. Motion carried.  
Discussion and possible decision regarding proposed contract addendum no. 2 with Foth Infrastructure 
and Environment, LLC to provide loan application and loan administration services for Clean Water Fund 



City of Elkhorn Common Council Meeting, Page 3 
 

 

and Safe Drinking Water Fund loans for Centralia Reconstruction Project (Phase 2). Motion 
(McClory/Payson Jr.) to approve contract addendum no. 2 with Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC to 
provide loan application and loan administration services for Clean Water Fund and Safe Drinking Water 
Fund loans for Centralia Reconstruction Project (Phase 2). Roll call vote: McClory, yes; Payson Jr., yes; 
Harkness, yes; Dunwiddie, yes; Meinel, yes. Motion carried.    
Discussion and possible decision regarding proposed amendment to listing contract between City and 
Anderson Commercial Group, LLC. Motion (Dunwiddie/Meinel) to approve the amendment to the listing 
contract between the City and Anderson Commercial Group, LLC. Voice vote, all approved, motion carried.  
Discussion and possible decision regarding process for reviewing proposals received in response to City’s 
RFP for building-inspection services. Administrator Swann reported the City received three proposals and 
asked the Council how they would like to proceed. The Council requested all three companies to be 
present during a Committee of the Whole meeting at 4:30 pm on May 6th prior to the Council meeting and 
for city staff to check references. 
Discussion and possible decision regarding process for filling vacant alderman seat for District 1. Staff will 
advertise the vacancy asking for anyone living in District 1 interested in the position to submit a letter of 
interest to the City Clerk. The Council will interview candidates at the May 20th meeting. 
Discussion and possible decision regarding process for appointing new city attorney. Staff will put together 
an RFP to be reviewed by the Council at the May 6th meeting.  
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION  
Motion (Payson Jr./Dunwiddie) to adjourn to closed session. Closed Session: The Common Council may 
entertain a motion to go into CLOSED SESSION pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85(1)(e) to 
deliberate on offers to purchase public property - Lot 72 (Tax Key YA 396900001). Closed Session: The 
Common Council may entertain a motion to go into CLOSED SESSION pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes 
Section 19.85(1)(c)—to consider the employment, promotion, compensation or performance evaluation of 
data of any public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility—
and pursuant to 19.85(1)(f)—to consider financial, medical, social or personal histories or disciplinary data 
of specific persons, preliminary consideration of specific personnel problems or the investigation of charges 
against specific persons which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect 
upon the reputation of any person referred to in such histories or data, or involved in such problems or 
investigations - review of findings from investigation ordered by Council on January 3, 2024. Voice vote, all 
approved, motion carried. Adjourned to closed session at 6:02 p.m.  
 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION  
Reconvened in open session at 6:23 pm. The Common Council shall RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 
reserving the right to take action on the matters discussed in CLOSED SESSION and to move to the 
remaining meeting agenda(s) as posted. 
Discussion and possible decision regarding offer to purchase public property Lot 72 (Tax Key YA 
396900001). Motion (McClory/Harkness) not to accept the offer and continue to negotiate in good faith. 
Voice vote, all approved, motion carried. 
Discussion and possible decision regarding findings from investigation ordered by Council on January 3, 
2024. No action taken. 
 
ADJOURN 
Motion (McClory/Dunwiddie) to adjourn at 6:24 pm. Voice vote, all approved, motion carried. 
  
Lacey L. Reynolds 
City Clerk  



Account Number: LOO-4-4472O, S10.00 (oer location)

Elrcr RN'"
wrscoNstN

APPUCATTON FOR TEMPORARY CTASS "B" (Beer)
And/Or "CLASS B" (Wine) RETAILER'S IICENSE

For serving or selling alcohol, pursuant to Elkhorn Ordinance 12.03

The named organization applies for:

! A Temporary Class "8" license to sell fermented malt beverages at picnics or similar gatherings under Wl Statute
125.26(6) (unlimited licenses allowed per year) ond/or

Q A Temporary "Class B" license to sell wine at picnics or similar gatherinBs under Wl Statute 125.51(10) (two
licenses allowed per year)

O Lodge/Society Oveteran's Association @Fair Association O Civic orTrade Organizaton
Oryarlzatlon Typ€:

O Eona fide club Qchurch

Walworth County Agricultural Society 411 E Court St
city & Zip Code

Elkhorn, Wl 53121

262-723-3228 office@wa lworth cou ntyfa i r.com

Aprit 28,1842
lf lncorporlt€d, date incorporaled

April5, 1965 wa lwo rthcou ntyfair. com

David Adams Jacob Polyock

Eileen Walsh-Gzenia Susan Earle
Alcohol Salet Start Tihe

Lt'.0D0*n
akonolsalet End Time

ll.DDPrq3.rii-R.clrnr Su\14 r to,J039
tvent Addrcss (see b€low rf a win Wail with more than on€ locationj up to 20 locationr allow.d)

411 E Court St. Elkhorn, Wl 53121
Estimat.d Attendance

50D
Wq"\,:o.l -v-., C,oucr\ni fiei<-
Llcensed op€rdtor {M u5t b€ prerent at a ll 6l.e5, lf not currently liceBed in E lkhorn, complete Tempordry Oper.to/s Appli.ati on)

Larry Gaffey
cur.eni city ol Elkhorn Op€rator Licenre No

23-107-48
DECTARATION
The Officer(s) of the orSanization,lndividually and together, dedare under penahies of lavr that the inrormation provided in this application is true and correct to
the best oftheir knowledge and belief. This organization agrees to complywith alllaw, resolution, ordinances and regulations (federel, stet€ and local)afrectinS

NOTE: this opplicotion must be accomponied byd SpeciolEvents Permit Applicotion to be considered. Fee moy not be requited.

r ftt/zazl^,., ort"l ^ /?'2Officer

v

or wlne if the license is grentedmented malt beveraSes anthe sale of

Date

Trhpo..ry I Ljcen € Addltlonal lnform.tlon
May be 6r.nted and lssucd only to: (1)8ona ffde clubsthathave been in existence forat l€ast6months p rior to the date of a pplication. "Club" means an organi-
zation, whether incorporated or not, which asthe owner,lessee or occupant ofa building or portion thereof used exclusively tor club purposes, which is operated
solely for a recreationel, tratemal, social, patriotic, political, benevolent or athletic purpose but nottor pecuniary galn ahd whlch only sells alcohol beverages inci-
dentalto its operation. (2)Stat€, county, civicortrade organirations, lo(al fa ir associafions, or aSrlcu hu ral societies. (3) Chu.ch,lodge, or societythat has be€n an

eistence for at least 6 months priorto the date ofapplication. (4)Posts how or hereafter established of ex-s€rvicemen's organizations.
R.stlctlons: (1)License may not b€ issued to individuals. (2)Iicenses to orSanizations, other than ex-servicemen's organizations, can be issued only for a picnicor
5imilar Eathering. Thev mav not be issued for buriners or social meeinir ofth€ orqanizahon_ (3)Licenres for club or orSanlzaton meetings may be issued only lo ex
se.vice-men,sp6s.(6)L[enseis5uedtoaco-tlntyordi5trict'a-irmUsicovertheentire

fairground (ss. 125.26(6)and 125.51(10), wis. Stats.)(6)No license to clubs having any indebtednessto any wholesalerfor more rhan 15 dat5 for beer (s. 125.33(7),
Wis. Stats.) and 30 days for wine {s. 125.69(4Xb), Wis. Stats.) (7} tic€nsed op€retor(s) must be present at alltimes (ss. 125.26(6), 125.32(2)- Seer; 125.51(10),
125.68(2)- Wine; 125.17)(8)The licensed.lub,.lub members, or any other pe6on5 are not permitted to possess intoxi.ating liquor on llcensed premises onthe
Temporary Class "B'/"Class B" licensed picnic ar€a. (s. 125.32(6), Wis. Stats.)(9)Not more than 2 wine lacens€s may be iesued to anyclub, county or localfair asso-
ciation, agricultural as5ociation, church, Iodge, society or veterans' post in any 12 month period. (10) Ucensed orga nizations m usi purchase their prod uct from a
lic€nsed wholesaler. (11) Wine Walk: up to 20 locations in one day; organization must charge an admission fee for participation in the €vent. and no additionalfee
may be charged forservice offurmented mah beverage/wine-
NOTE: l9ost coolers presently on the market have fermented malt beverage base allowing sale under a beer license (Ba(les & James, Seagrams, etc.). Most hard
ciders are not a fermented mah beveraSe or wine and may not be sold with a Temporary "Class 8" orClass "B" license.

ofue Us. orrly Date Reaeived: Date Approved by Common Council: License No.

Please Print Clearly

/^4



ExH RN-
wtscoNstN

APPUCATION FOR TEMPORARY CTASS "8" (Beer)
And/Or "CLASS B" (Wine) RETAILER'S IICENSE

For serving or selling alcohol, pursuant to Elkhorn Ordinance 12.03

The named organization applies for:

! A Temporary Class "B" license to sell fermented malt beverages at picnics or similar gatherings under Wl Statute
125.26(6) (unlimited licenses allowed per year) ond/or

Q A Temporary "Class B" license to sell wine at picnics or similar gatherings under Wl Statute 125.51(10) (two
licenses allowed per year)

Ory.nlt.tl,on Type:

O Bona fide club Qchurctr O todSe/Society Qveteran's Association OFair Asrcciation O Civic or Trade Organization

Walworth County Agricultural Society 411 E Court St
Ctty & Zip Code

Elkhorn, Wl 53121

262-723-3228 office@walworth cou ntyfa i r.co m

April28,1842
lf ln.orpor.ted, date i.co.porated

April5, 1965 walworthcountyfair.com

Jacob Polyock

Susan EarleEileen Walsh-Gzenia

?:u\\ R.,clin\ 5u\ l'lq3tl
Date(s) AlcoholSalesStartT me

t: OOpnr
AlcoholSales End lime:

!;OOpnr\J
Ev€nt Addrcss (ree b€loN, ifa Wi.. W.lk wlth mor. than on.lo..tionj up to 20locaboru allow.d)

411 E Court St. Elkhorn, Wl 53121 -)
Des.rib. P..mis.s wher. beerlwimwill be stored, roldand

Uq\,lot*tr Q-v.^n\r
coneum.d (tor Wine walb, attarh she.t listint each lo.ation addre 13, premisedesc ptionand lke.red op€rator at€ach)

(c,, (-
Licensed Op€Gtor (Mun be prerent a1€lltimes,lf not currently lirensed in Ellhorn, cornpleteTenporary Operato/s Application)

Larry Gaffey
Cuiienl City of Elkhorn Opcr.tor Li.eos. No

23-',t0748
DECTARATIOI{
The Officer(s) ofthe organization, individually and together. declare under penaltres of lawthat the information provided in this application istrueand corred to
the bert of their knowied8e and belief. This orSanization a8rees to comply with all law, resolution, ordina nces a nd reSulations (federal, gtate and locall affedin8

NOTE: this opplicdtion must be occomponied by o SpeciolEvents Pemit Applicotion to be considered. Fee moy not be required

7-2Date cI "t/

the sale offermented malt beverages and/or wine if the license is grant€d

Temporary B Llceffe Additlon.l lnlonnatlon
M.y be cr. cd end lssucd ohly to: (1) Eoha fide clubs that have been in existence for et least 6 months piorto th€ date of application. "Club" means an organi
zaton, whethea incorpoBted or not, which is the owner, lessee or occupant of a building or portion thereofused exclusivev forclub purposes, which is operated
solelyfor a recreatonal, fraternal, social, patriotic, political, benevolent or athletic purpose but not for pecunieryEain and which only s€lls alcohol beverages inci-
dentalto its operation. (2)State, county, civic ortrade orSa nizations, local fair associations, o. agricu hura I societies. (3) Church,lodg€, or societythat has been in
existence for at least 6 months priorto the dat€ olappli€a6on, {4}Posts now or h€reafter established of er-servicemen's organirations.
Reitri.tions: (1) [i.ense maynot be issued to andividuals. (2) Licenses to organizations, other than ex's€rvicemen's organizations, can be issued only fora picnic or
similar Bathering. They mav not b€ issued for business orso.ial meetnts ofth€ or'aniration. (3) Licenses for club or organizatron me€tin8s may be ilsued onv lo er
-servicement post!- (4)Ucense maycover either a specafied area or the entire picnic grounds. (5)License issued to a county or districtfair must cover the entire
fairground (ss. 125.26{6)and 125.51(10}, Wis. Stats.)(6) No licen5e to clubs havin8 any indebtedness to any wholelaler for more than 15 days for beer (s. 125.33(7},
Wis. Stats.) and 30 days for $,in€ (r. 125.69(4Xbl, Wis. Stats.) (7) Ucensed operator(s) must be present at alltim€s (ss. 125.26{6), f25.32(2)- Beer; 125.5f(10),
125.68(2)- Wine; 125.17)(8) The lic€nsed club, club members, or any other persons are not permitted to possess intoxicatinS l;quor on licensed premises on the
Temporary Class "8-/-Class B" licensed picnic area. (s. 125.3216), Wis. Stats.)(9)Not more than 2 wine licenser may be issued to anyclub, county or lo.alrair asso-
ciation, agricultura I association, church, lod8e, society or veterans' post in a ny 12 month period. (10) Licensed or8an ilations m ust purchas€ their prod uct from a
licensed wholesaler. (11) wine walk: upto 20locations in on€ day; organization must char8€ an admission fee for participation in the event, and no additionalfee
may b€ char8ed for service of fermented mah beveraBe/wine.
NOTE: Most coolers presently on the market have fermented m.lt beverage base allowing sal€ under a beer license (Sanles & James, Seagrems, etc.). Most hard
ciders are not a fe.mented mah beveaage or wine and may not be sold with a Temporary "Class 8" or Class "8" liaense.

Oflce u* Only Date Received: Date Approved by Common Council: Iicense No.

Please Print Clearly

Account Number: 7@-4-44120, 510.00 (oer location)

David Adams



Ens RN-
WISCONSIN

APPL|CAT|ON FOR TEMPORARY CLASS "B" (Beer)

And/Or "CLASS B" (Wine) RETAILER'S IICENSE
For servint or selling alcohol, pursuant to Elkhorn Ordinance 12.03

The named organization applies tor:

! A Temporary Class "8" license to sell fermented malt beverages at picnics or similar gatherings under Wl Statute
125.25(6) (unlimited licenses allowed per year) and/or

Q A Temporary "Class B" license to sell wine at picnics or similar gatherings under Wl Statute 125.51(10) (two
licenses allowed per year)

O todSe/society QVeteran's Association OFai. Associadon O civic or Trade organization
Ort.nltatlon Type:

O Bona fide club Qctrurch

city & zip Code

Elkhorn, Wl 53121Walworth County Agricultural Society 411 E Court St

262-723-3228 offi ce@wa lworthcou ntyfa ir.com
Email

April28,1842
It hcoDorated, dat€ incorporated

April5, 1965 walworthcountyfair.com

Jacob PolyockDavid Adams

Eileen Walsh-Grzenia Susan Earle
Al.ohols.l8 tnd Tim.:It:oopvn _

Al.ohol s.le! sba rim.:l\,0Ocrfi/, ac
so,oeoqoare{5)

EventAddreer Geebelowifa Wine Walk with more lhanone location; up lo 20lo.ahons allowed)

411 E Court St. Elkhorn, Wl 53121 /o. ooo
D.s.nb€ P,.mie! wh... b.€rlwim

t^h\.^rnr**-\,
willbe rtorcd, sold andGonsum.d (tor wim walls, attach sheet Itnng each locatron address, prenite der./ipton and li..n*d operatorat each)

Q-ot.n\ fo'
Cunent City of Elkho.n Opehtorlicense No

23-10748
Ucensed Op€rato. (Mun be present at allthes,lf not.u.rent! licensed in Elthoh, completelemporary Operato/s Applkaton)

Larry Gaffey
DECTARATIOT{
The Officerls) ofthe orSanization, individually and together, declare under penalties of la\i/that the informatron provided in this application istrue and correct to
the best oftheir knowied8e and belief. This organi:ation agrees to comply with all lew, resolution, ordinances and regulatrons (federal, nate and local) affectin8

NOTE: this opplicdtion must be dccomponied by o SpeciolEvents Permit Applicdtion to be considered. Fee moy not be rcquired.

Date l1

malt beveraSes and/or wine ifthe license is Sranted

ate

the sale 
9l,lh{mented

n ."(1i4.,(tts-.,
4
Otticer

Tehporary B Licens€ Mdltional lnfonnadon
May be Granted and lisued only to: (1) Eona fide clubs that have been in erartence forat least 5 months priorto the date ofapplication. "Club" means an or8ani-
zation, whether incorporated or not, which is the owner,lessee or occupant ofa building or portion thereofused erclusivev for club purposes, which ir operated
solely for e recreational, fraternal, social, patrioic, political, benevolent or athleft purpose but not for pecuniaryBain and which only sells alcohol beveraSes inci-
dentalto its operation. (2 ) state, county, civic or trade organizations, lo.a I fe ir asso.iationt or a8ricu lturdl societies. (3) Church, lodge, or so(i€ty that has been in
existence foret least 6 months prior tothe date olapplication, (4)Post5 now or hereafter established of ex-servic€men's organi2ations.
Restricdons: (1)Ucense may not be issued to individuals. (2) Licenses to organirations, other then ex-servicemen's organazatons, can be issued onlyfora picnic or
simllar gatherint. IIlyIlyjqlbqllllllllgl:-burin€3s or socialmeetinas ofthe orseni?ation. (3)Licenses for club or orsanlzation meehnSt lrlay be rssued onV lo er
.service-men,sp6s'(i)Licenseissuedtoaco-untyordinrict,airmu5icovertleentire
fai.Sround (s5- 125.26(6)and 125.51(1o), wis. stats.) (6)No licenae to cirbs h.ving any indebtedness toany wholesaler for more than 15 dayt for beer (s. 125.33(7),
Wis. Stats.) and 30 days for wine G. 125.69(4Xb), Wis. Stats.) (7) Licensed operato(s) murt be present at alltime5 (ss. 125.25(5), 125.32(2)- Beer; 125.51(10),
125.58{2) - Wine; 125.17) {8) The licensed club, club membert or any other peBons are not p€rmitted to possess intoxicating laquor on licensed premises on the
Temporary Class "B'/"Class 8" licensed picnic area. (s. 125.32(6), Wis. Stats.) (9) t{ot more than 2 wine licenses may be issued to any club, county or local fair asso.
cia6on, aEriaultural association, church, lodge, society or veterans' port in any 12 month period, (10) [icensed organirations must purchase thek prod uct from a

licensed wholesaler. (11) Wine Walk: upto 20locations in one day;organization must charge an admission fee for participation in th€ event, and no additionalfee
may be chrged for service of fermented mah beverage/wine.
NOTE: Most coolers presently on the market have fermented malt bev€rage base allowinS sale under a beer license (Sartles & James, sea8rams, etc.). Most hard
cid€rs are not a fermented mah beverage orwine end may not b€ sold with a Temporary "Class 8" orClass "B" licens€.

Ofr.e u5. Only Date Rec€ived: Date Approved by common coun.il: license No.

Please Print Clearly

Account Number: 700-4-44120, S10.00 (per location)

-\\,\r, 5\ A(]aq -T-l. n(.l c '-r'
qr 1^rn



City of Elkhorn – Building & Zoning Department 
 

Staff Report                                                         Prepared: May 3, 2024 
 
TO:  City Council – City of Elkhorn  FROM:  Department of Building and Zoning 

Common Council Meeting:  Monday, May 6, 2024 at 5:30 pm 
 

Beekeeping Permit 
Common Council Action 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Information: 
 Applicant(s):    Javan, Jenny, and Jonah Wehmeier 
 Requested Action:   Beekeeping Permit 
 
Site Information: 
 Location:    147 North Water Crest Court  
 Tax Key:     YEW2 00114 
 
 
Project History: 
 
The applicant is requesting a beekeeping permit at their primary residence in the rear yard that backs up to a pond/wetland 
area that will never be developed. The property owner is requesting one hive, with 10 frames, and an Italian queen bee. The 
property owners are in compliance with all requirements of the City Ordinance. Zoning Administrator has agreed to allow the 
beehive closer than 10 feet to the lot line, as there is no residential development in the rear yard. 
 
Staff Recommendations: 
 
1. Staff recommends that the Common Council APPROVE the beekeeping permit for the property located at 147 North 

Water Crest Court. 
 

 
 
 



Received li 2 s100.00 Acct 100-4-44309

APPLICATION FOR

BEEKEEPING PERMIT
H-rcr RN'"
WISCONSIN

General lnformation (please type or print clearly)

licanUBeekee

Property where hive(s) will be located

Address: 111 1(or/h Naler tretl Cio,-tr+

r Pro Owner"
Name

Address

P hone

Email

. A Letter of Approval from the Property Owner is required if beekeeper is lenant at property

t'€/

Elkhorn, Wl

en c 'Torah Uehnuavan i-De€ rY)Java? on'l
t 41 N r 7't6 "111 aS(r- (^rlJ f eour*
'f. 

1Lho(nt tD t 53 tdl
aLa- 7a3-[5A7
ienr\L/a /fa8 O.qru,/, c.r'4

Beekeepinglnformation (tee a{ UL

Number of Pro

Type of flyway

posed Hives: / Breed of Q'o^u,"r. 
noO" neodeCf

ueen I-+a )' a,1

Water Source to be provided o n ncl ctclr at,la-l aJ ne ? 2,1 ?./

Date lnspected by Zoning Administrator _Approved

ffi n scale drawing of the site, showing the location of the hive(s), flyway barrier, water source, lot lines and setbacks,
' ' and habitable buildings within 25 feel of the hives.

fi ef,otograpns. drawings. or manufacturers brochures describing the materials and dimensions of all hives.

fi Letter trom property owner where hive(s) will be kept (if property is not owned by the applicant).

X Neighbor Notification Form from all adjoining and diagonally abutting property owners, including those across an
alley, provided to neighbors at least 15 days prior to review by the Common Council

Signature
The undersigned person hereby petitions the City of Elkhorn, Wisconsin, to issue a Beekeeping Permit for the

keeping of bees in the City as described above and on the attached documents. lf all neighbors approve, no
written objections are received, city staff verifies that the conditions and standards have been/will be met, and the
application is approved by the Common Council, a permit shall be issued by the City Clerk.

Upon issuance of Permit, the undersigned hereby agrees to contact the City of Elkhorn Zoning Administrator at
262-741-51241o setup a site inspection lor location of apiary, water source and flylvay barrier. Upon inspection and
approval of premise, the Zoning Administrator shall sign permit thereby completing permit application process.

Signature toTnl" '1^/t!,ly,t@1\ Date
q-au -dq

Office Use Only
q Date Application, Fee & Neighbor Notification Form Received

Date Provided to Zoning Administrator
Date Provided to Common Council _Approved _Denied
Date Permit lssued - Permit No.:

Denied

ATTACH ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS. OBJECTIONS. HEARINGS OR DENIAL INFORIvIATION RELATED TO THIS APPLICATION

Size of Property: " 4tl a-are

Attachments The following items shall be provided.



Jicna h h)ahrner{tBeekeeping Applicant:

Address for Potential Bee Hives: /'l 1 iV . lila lef (retl Ot,
NEIGHBOR NOTIFICATION FORM- SIGNATURE PAGE

UT BELOW:

Name: ,lerla- Date: 4-,1-trl
Address: / lef ('re.tf C* Phone:

d with information regarding my neighbor's application to keep bees

I Household resident with demonstrable medical condition

I !-J

BORS PLEASE FILL O

fil hrin s

N EIGH

veb

rove

I ha een pro e

E npp

SIG NAT

Object

NEIGHBORS PLEASE FILL OUT BELOW

Name /fir. 14anA. d^t,n 4 -'/" )'l
Ad d ress /,/3 N. Nakt' Cntt+ Cf .rn."#, ?t7-2.7^QaU

I have been provided with information regarding my neighbor's application to keep bees

D ate:

House ld resident with demonstrable medical conditionpprove

SIGNATURE

fl obiect fl" h"L
Name Ch";s q \l,o'f-f

NEIGHBORS PLEASE FILL OUT BELOW:

Date Z
2t,) -tl zo - ? 7/i

4

57t-A

Add ress: Phone:

I have been provided with information regarding my neighbor's application to keep bees

KAppror" I Object ! Household resident with demonstrable medical condition

/)
SIGNATU RE:

f
NEIGHBORS PLEASE FILL OUT BETOW:

D ate

I have been provided with information regarding my neighbor's application to keep bees

F Approve lobtect trH

,)
q

SIGNATU RE

o S hold resident with demonstrable medical condition

o7

(

I

.2

Nam e: \

o Address: 15l Nwql+rCrtil, Dll(haq,AL enon",



Beekeeping lnformation Addendum

Number of Proposed Hives: One
Breed of Queen: ltalian
Hive Description: 1O-frame Langstroth bee hive with two full depth hive bodies and two medium
depth supers (no shallow supers) (images below)

Outer TelGcoFlng Cow.r
3 plec.s 7il. r / x 1A /+ (lot )
2 p'Ecqs 21 A_ x /r'x 2' (3'd6)
2 Fiec€s 16'/,.-x '.! x 2_ (snds)

2ple6'7-x,:-x16/
2 p,6ces './r-: /*_ x r8'/-
2 Plgces 5_ t ,' x 19 r/.
1 pJ€ce 4,/! r /n x 19 ri',

t/l€dlum D6lh "llllrrors- suPGr
2 p.i.ces 19 /"'x ,"r 5 rr.- (sirss)
2 plcc€s '! 4 /+- x r" r 6 rru- (snc!s)

S h.ll'ow Exrractlng Sup€.
2 proces rg /.-x r."x 5 '/,.-_ {sl.tes}
2 Plocas 14 'r'*- x /." x 5:r/,' (omE)

Crcd Erl{.rcll.r9
2 Pleces 19 VJ_ x i/.' ]( 5 3,/.' {s6es)
2 p*s 11.t. x Yr' x 5 r/. (€nos)

Full Deplh Hlve Bo{b,
2 pt+c€319.1.'x .ri'x 9'lr,_ (skles)
2 pt9<es 14.t-'* 1." \ 9z-. (erl. s)

3p€ces7r'-r r. x15irJ (llooo
2 pl€.es 2 '\ t x 22' <s*res)
1 9tp4e 2.t, xi/r x t4' j. (grds)

21 ti-

-

5.^

15 -/

Frgu.e 21, rhe parts ol a rnodern honey Dee hive



Lanqstroth Hive

Qriden
Excluder

/d
.#'
1.'1st Dee-p

,.* Super fo1
" I Brood ;

t\

'ift
Vt-- +

Slatted
Rack

creened Bottom Board
BeverlyBees.com

t-

I

-

-

I

I

I

\
<

rt Outer Cover
with lnner Cover.

_{idderygq?gE

Niedium
Super for
Honey

I

I

I

2nd Deep
Super for
Brood I

*l

i

I

I
I



cHrs€lto "\rr

rtE1

.+

-oc

\6
AS BUILT

FOUNDAT]ON

se't"

4

dt

i-
/ -J0

I
,t

I

a'9

4Z

FARRIS, HANSEN & ASSOCIA'IES, INC.
ENGINEERING - ARCHI'IECIURE - SUR\EYNE

7 RTDGWAY COURT - P.O. BOX 457 - EL(HORN, VflSC0'rStN 55121
PHONE: (262) 723-2098 FAX: (262) 72F5886

pLAr or srr3v5y - "TI-"315:58"* -

Lor 14 oF ELKH9RN v,Esr ADDrloN No. 2 Tfi.""i:i.:i.*"'$S
LOCAIED rN PART OF lHE NE 1/4 OF lHE SE 1/4 OF SECTON Js

TOW.I 3 NORIH, RANGE 16 EAST, CIfi OF RXHORN, WALIIOR]H COUNTY, WISCONSIN

E
&s

,1. 
o'&,*

,':ir&,

unlrY 60xts\
o

s 87 0..o5- t

!0 20

!EGENO

a = sEI lROl iEEAR ST^(E

O = TOUND IRON PIPE STAKE

(rxx) = R€COROIo AS

U^P SCALE lN FttI oRICINAL 1" = 20'

rOIEr COPI€S Or lHlS xAP TO r*ocrl IHE aa!Oit!{6 CERIF|CAIE lllt APPLY:,8OrY lH{ sUR!EY@S Of,ldrlaL
s€a" Ano slcr{^tuRt nr Rao rl+( coaEs aY anY oil€R lrEANS ilaY Hllt lfrER^notls \rvnrcH Do Nor
iIPRESIN! IHT sURl,tYOfi'S 

'ORX 
PRODUCT

I H€A'!Y CERN'Y IH^'I IXE AAOVE oES'RIBTO PROPFATY H^S Bf'I{ gJR!(I{O UfiOEN T,lY OIiECiOtl AllO THAT INE
raolt {aP ts A muf RtPRfsENrAIlo{ rHEREoF AND Srors lHE 5rZ€ A{O LOC^rOr (r TkE PROPaFIY AJo rrs
Exl!&Oi AOUNDARTE5. rHrS SURvlr ls rDE fO& Drt usl Of lHt PeESEnr OTWERS 0r fiE moPERlY, ANo

&so lhosE ylHo PuRcHAst, raocrcAoE. oR c{raRAr{IEE IHE nTLa lHCRflO $EllN oN€ Y€AR fFoll IHa 0A€

itlls€o J/r5l2oro-xa
ro aoo roPociAPH'( AL lNroa&AroN

ntv5lo (/20/ro'o (a
. TO S OW SZa & LCCATON Or PROP?SEo AalotNct

.. , .|: "r i-f':-.--., ---=- : .- - : --.---- - -- !-------, ,
*nP i coaoor Cii ]'or '. ' l,-l

1O SHOW AS BUrLT aOJTOAnON
PROJLCI: 6101.02.r14
OAIE: O9/12/2OA5
SHEIT I Oi !

I

e:,.

I

,l I

l

fltlr;i-Iil
il -:,r, r s lr,rl, r,iij

[,=-==-:==:]

a\

a6 I l

a\
g\



 
MEMO 
 
TO:  Mayor Tim Shiroda  
  Alderman Ronald Dunwiddie 
  Alderman Kurt Harkness 

Alderman Scott McClory 
  Alderman Ken Meinel 
  Alderman Gary Payson, Jr.  
  Alderman for District 1 (vacant) 
    
FROM: Adam Swann 
 
DATE: May 3, 2024  
 
RE:  Common Council Meeting on May 6, 2024  
 
City Administrator Report 
 

• Interim grading permit for Creekside Community Development 
 
The city engineer has approved Creekside Community’s interim grading 

permit application, so the developer will be able to move dirt once they submit 
their letter of credit. City staff and the City engineers are continuing to meet 
weekly with Creekside Community Development to review and discuss the 
specific implementation plan, which still needs to be submitted to the Plan 
Commission and Council for approval.  

 
• Completion of apprenticeship by Nathan Porter 

 
Nathan Porter, a member of the Electric Department, recently completed 

his four-year apprenticeship to become a journeyman.  
 

• Start of 2024 Northeast Water Treatment Plant water and sewer 
extension project 
 



2 
 

Construction has started on the NEWTP water and sewer extension 
project. As part of the project, a section of Cobb Road near the NEWTP is shut 
down until approximately May 17, 2024.  

 
• Removal of structures at future City park 

 
The house and related structures have been removed from the 40-acre City 

parcel on the north side of the City. 
 
New Business 
 

• Discussion and possible decision regarding amending 2024 budget to 
increase EEDA grant funds by $32,541.50, which is the amount of 
unused EEDA grant funds in 2023 
 
The City funds a building improvement grant program through the EEDA, 

which provides a 20% match for improvements to commercial buildings in the 
City. The focus is on exterior façade improvements, although some interior 
improvements are currently permitted (e.g., energy efficiency, ADA, and 
repurposing for retail). The EEDA did not receive any grant applications in 
2023, and as a result, $32,541.50 in grant funds were not used.  

 
The EEDA has received several inquiries from building owners interested 

in projects in 2024, but the City budgeted approximately $22,500 for grants in 
2024, so the EEDA has inquired as to whether the City would increase the grant 
funds available in 2024 by the amount of unused funds from 2023—i.e., 
$32,541.50. These funds come from the City’s Community Development Fund, 
which is funded through sales of City property, lodging taxes, and zoning and 
building permit fees. (The fees the City pays for zoning services and building 
inspections are deducted from this account.) The Community Development 
Fund has approximately $665,008.63 as of today’s date, although the fund has 
seen higher expenses due to increased fees for legal services, zoning 
administration, and building inspections.  

 
• Discussion and possible decision regarding issuance of a request for 

proposals for city attorney services 
 
Your Council packet includes a draft of an RFP for city attorney services. 

If the Council is agreeable to the RFP, the City will start advertising for 
proposals on May 7, 2024, and proposals will be due by Monday, June 3, 2024 
at 8:00 a.m. Due to the fact that the city attorney position is appointed by the 
mayor, with confirmation by the Council, the mayor and Council president will 



3 
 

review the proposals and conduct interviews in early June. The mayor will then 
make an appointment for Council confirmation.  

 
• Discussion and possible decision regarding proposed Resolution 24-

12: A Resolution Approving an Interfund Loan from the City Electric 
Fund to the Tax Incremental District #4 
 
As the Council is aware from prior years, the increment generated by TID 

4 is not sufficient to cover the yearly principal and interest payments on the 
TID 4 debt. The shortfall for 2024 is $207,144.67. In the past the City has 
covered this shortfall by advancing funds from the Electric Fund to TID 4. (The 
interfund loan was $175,225.49 in 2023; this was lower than 2024 due to the 
availability of some unused funds from the original borrowing.) Proposed 
Resolution 24-12 would transfer $175,225.49 from the Electric Fund to TID 4 
as an interfund loan. 

 
One of the reasons the Creekside Development project is so important (in 

addition to creating new residential units) is that it will help generate additional 
revenues for TID #4 and reduce the deficit in the coming years—and hopefully 
generate enough increment to pay back the Electric Fund. In addition, the 
Holiday Inn Express & Suites recently sold for significantly more than the 
hotel’s assessed value, so when the hotel is reassessed in the future, this should 
help generate additional increment. The Love’s Travel Plaza’s assessment 
increased 30% to $5,663,100 in 2024. Furthermore, the property where the 
restaurant shell is located increased from $177,900 to $817,000. In total the 
TID 4 properties experienced an increase in value of $4,010,500 for 2024, 
which will be reflected in next year’s taxes, assuming the valuations are not 
reduced during the appeal process.   

 
• Discussion and possible decision regarding City participation in “No 

Mow” May 
 
The Council discussed participating in “No Mow” May last year. The 

Council declined to participate. Alderman Harkness requested that this item be 
placed on the agenda. As a refresher on this issue, I’ve included two articles—
one about Wisconsin cities participating in “No Mow” May and one about a 
Wisconsin city that reversed its decision to participate. As a reminder, City 
Code requires weeds and grass to be kept to a height not to exceed one foot. 

 
 



CITY OF ELKHORN 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-11 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ENGAGEMENT AGREEMENT WITH  
PRUITT, EKES & GEARY, S.C. AS THE INTERIM CITY ATTORNEY FOR THE 

CITY OF ELKHORN 

WHEREAS, that on April 16, 2024, the Mayor appointed and the City Council confirmed  
the appointment of Pruitt, Ekes & Geary, S.C. as interim City Attorney for the City of Elkhorn;  

WHEREAS, Pruitt, Ekes & Geary, S.C. has submitted for approval an engagement 
agreement for the firm to provide legal services to the City, including prosecution services, which 
engagement agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and  

WHEREAS, Pruitt, Ekes & Geary, S.C. shall act as the legal advisor to the City and shall 
be responsible for providing legal services to the City as may be requested from time-to-time as 
further set forth in the City’s Code of Ordinances; and  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of Elkhorn 
confirms the designation of the members of the firm Pruitt, Ekes & Geary, S.C. as follows:  Elaine 
S. Ekes as the City Attorney, and the designations of Timothy J. Pruitt, Christopher A. Geary and
Rebecca J. Shepro as Assistant City Attorneys.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the 
City of Elkhorn approves the engagement agreement for legal services attached hereto as Exhibit 
A effective as of April 16, 2024. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Elkhorn on the ____ 
day of ____________________, 2024.  

Tim Shiroda, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Lacey L. Reynolds, City Clerk 



                       

EXHIBIT A



Ji Pruitt
Ekes 
Geary 

11r!T 
Pruitt, Ekes & Geary, S.C. 

Timothy J. Pruitt 

Elaine Sutton Ekes 

Christopher A. Geary 

Rebecca J. Shepro 

Office Administrator: 

Eileen M. Zaffiro 

245 Main Street, Suite 404, Racine, WI 53403 Phone: 262-456-1216 Facsimile: 262-456-2086 www.peglawfirm.com 

Mr. Adam G. Swann 
City Administrator 
City of Elkhorn 

3 11 Seymour Court 
Elkhorn, WI 53121 

April 30, 2024 

RE: Legal Services - Interim City Attorney 

Dear Adam: 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide legal services to the City of Elkhorn. This 
engagement agreement governs municipal legal services that our firm will provide to the City of 
Elkhorn, as the interim City Attorney, including acting as the City Prosecutor at the City of Elkhorn 
Municipal Court, effective as of April 16, 2024. We anticipate that our relationship will be a 
pleasant one. We expect that you will be fully satisfied with our performance. We are committed 
to providing the City with the best quality legal services. Set forth below is additional information 
related to our representation of the City. Generally, we understand that the City has engaged other 
attorneys to provide specialized legal services for employment and labor related matters, municipal 
borrowing and bonding, court litigation (including nuisance and code enforcement), defense on 
assessment challenges and environmental law. This engagement agreement is separate and distinct 
from our engagement agreement dated May 1, 2023 to provide legal services for zoning and land 
use planning matters to the City, which at this time still continues. 

Scope of Services 

The services to be provided by our firm will be limited to those in which City staff/officials 
consult with the attorneys from our firm. The City will designate appropriate City staff/officials 
to be the point(s) of contact for purposes of requesting legal assistance on matters affecting the 
City. In reliance upon information and guidance provided by the City, we will provide legal 
services in accordance with this engagement agreement. 







Mr. Adam G. Swann 
City Administrator 
April 30, 2024 
Page 4 

shall have the right to award costs to the prevailing party. This agreement shall be governed by 
the laws of the State of Wisconsin. 

Thank you again for the opportunity to provide legal representation to the City. After 
reviewing this letter and upon approval by the Common Council, please have Mayor Shiroda and 
Ms. Reynolds sign as Mayor and Clerk, date and return one copy to us. We look forward to 
working with you. 

ESE:emz 

Sincerely, 

PRUITT, EKES & GEARY, S.C. 

Elaine S. Ekes 
esekes@peglawfirm.com 

AGREED AND ACCEPTED on this __ day of ____ , 2024. 

CITY OF ELKHORN 

BY: ________________ _ 

Attest: 

Tim Shiroda 
Mayor 

----------------

Lacey Reynolds 
City Clerk 



 
CITY OF ELKHORN 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 24-04 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1.03(2)(h)(1) OF THE CITY OF ELKHORN 
MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING THE APPOINTMENT OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

AND OTHER ATTORNEYS 
 
 

 The Common Council of the City of Elkhorn do ordain as follows: 
 
 PART I. Section 1.03(2)(h)(1) of the Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 
 
 “1.  City Attorney. 

 
a. City Attorney.  The City Attorney shall be appointed by the Mayor, subject to 

the confirmation of the Common Council as provided for under Sec. 1.03(2)(c) 
and shall hold office at the pleasure of the Council.  To the extent that the City 
appoints a law firm as its legal advisor, the City shall designate a member of 
that firm as the City Attorney. The City Attorney shall be duly authorized to 
practice in the courts of the State of Wisconsin and if a law firm, the law firm 
shall have attorney members who are duly authorized to practice in the courts 
of the State of Wisconsin.  The City Attorney shall advise on those matters and 
perform those duties as may be assigned by the City as prescribed in Sec. 
62.09(12), Wis. Stat., and this Code.  The City may also designate an assistant 
city attorney or attorneys, who shall have power to perform the City Attorney’s 
duties.   In the case of the appointment of a law firm, such attorneys shall be 
compensated by the City in accordance with the contract for engagement.  The 
City Attorney shall have no responsibility for matters in which they have not 
been consulted or for which the City has engaged other attorneys.  

 
b. Other attorneys.  The City, with the prior approval of the Common Council, 

may engage an attorney or law firm, on an on-going or a matter-specific basis, 
to handle specific matters that would otherwise be handled by the City Attorney. 
These attorneys may include, but are not limited to: 

 
(i)   Prosecuting attorney. The prosecuting attorney shall be the City Attorney 

(or a member of the appointed law firm) unless a different attorney is 
appointed.  The prosecuting attorney shall advise and represent the City in 
enforcing municipal ordinances in Municipal Court.  

 
(ii) Labor and employment attorney. The labor and employment attorney shall 

represent and advise the City in connection with labor and employment 
matters, including without limitation the negotiation of collective 
bargaining agreements, employee discipline, and the creation and 
enforcement of employee policies and contracts. The City labor and 
employment attorney shall keep the Common Council and staff informed of 



 
changes in federal and state labor and employment law that affect the City 
and shall promptly recommend any appropriate amendments to this Code 
resulting from such changes. 

 
(iii)  Specialized Counsel.  Specialized litigation or other specialized area of law   
        such as environmental; or 
 
(iv) Conflict of Interest.  When the City Attorney or other engaged attorneys 

has a conflict of interest. 
 

c. Contract. The City shall enter into an engagement agreement with any attorney 
approved by the Common Council that specifies the terms and conditions of the 
firm's and/or attorney's appointment or engagement. 
 

d. Independent legal judgment.  When rendering legal advice and services, an 
attorney shall exercise independent legal judgment.  No City official shall 
interfere with the exercise of an attorney's independent legal judgment or direct 
the conclusions of any legal opinion.   
 

e. Delegation.  Unless otherwise instructed by the [Mayor or Administrator], 
any attorney at an engaged firm may work on an assigned matter. 
 

f. Employee Benefits.  Any attorney engaged by the City shall not be entitled to     
City employment benefits unless specifically authorized by the Common 
Council.” 

 
 PART II. The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable.  Should any term or 
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remaining terms and provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 PART III. All ordinances or parts of ordinances contravening the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
 PART IV. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and 
publication. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Elkhorn on the ____ 
day of _________, 2024.  
 
       APPROVED: 
 
              
       Tim Shiroda, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Lacey L. Reynolds, City Clerk 



 

 

CITY OF ELKHORN 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

CITY ATTORNEY 

 

  
Issued May 7, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

CITY OF ELKHORN 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
CITY ATTORNEY 

 
May 7, 2024 

 
 
The City of Elkhorn is seeking proposals from qualified, licensed attorneys or law 
firms to serve in the position of city attorney. The individual or firm submitting a 
response to this request should have at least five (5) years of experience providing 
legal services to a municipality or local government. The city attorney position is 
appointed by the mayor, subject to confirmation by the Common Council.  
 
Proposals may be mailed or delivered electronically. All proposals must be 
received by no later than 8:00 a.m. on Monday, June 3, 2024. Proposals 
delivered or received after the submittal deadline will be deemed late and rejected. 
There are no exceptions to this requirement.  
 
If submitting a proposal by mail, the proposal must be placed in a sealed envelope, 
plainly marked “Sealed Proposal for City Attorney Services” and addressed to the 
following: 
 

Adam Swann 
City Administrator 
311 Seymour Ct. 

Elkhorn, WI 53121 
 
If submitting a proposal electronically, please send it to Adam Swann, City 
Administrator, at aswann@cityofelkhorn.org.  
  
Inquiries regarding this RFP may be directed to Adam Swann, City Administrator, 
at (262) 723-2219 or aswann@cityofelkhorn.org.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:aswann@cityofelkhorn.org
mailto:aswann@cityofelkhorn.org


3 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
 
Community Info 
 
The City of Elkhorn is located in the center of Walworth County, Wisconsin, and 
serves as the county seat. Elkhorn has a population of approximately 10,240 people 
according to the most recent 2022 Census estimate. In the past year the City has 
seen an increase in commercial and industrial development, and there is a large 
mixed-use residential and commercial project under development. The City’s 
desirable location near the crossroads of I-43 and Highway 12 is likely to 
encourage growth in the City for the foreseeable future.  
 
Organizational Structure 
 
Elkhorn operates under the mayor-council form of government and has a city 
administrator, appointed by the Council, who is responsible for overseeing the day-
to-day operations.  
 
Pursuant to City Code Section 1.03(2), the city attorney is appointed by the mayor, 
subject to confirmation by the Common Council. Meetings of the Common 
Council are usually held on the first and third Mondays of the month at 5:30 p.m. 
The Common Council also utilizes boards and Council committees for providing 
recommendations about City policies and permits. These boards and committees 
include the following: Plan Commission, Committee of the Whole, Financial and 
Judicial Committee, Municipal Services and Utilities Committee, Legislative and 
Regulatory Committee, Human Resources Committee, and Public Safety 
Committee. Plan Commission meetings are regularly held the first and third 
Thursdays of the month at 6:00 p.m. The other committee meetings are scheduled 
as needed.  
 
The city attorney is responsible for providing legal advice to the City and Common 
Council on a broad range of issues, including City Code interpretation, ordinance 
drafting, real estate transactions, contract drafting and interpretation, land use, and 
zoning. The city attorney also represents the City in prosecutions in front of the 
Elkhorn Municipal Court. The City uses separate legal counsel for personnel 
matters and bond issuances.  
 
 
 



4 
 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
The City of Elkhorn is requesting proposals from qualified, licensed attorneys or 
legal firms to serve in the position of city attorney. The services under the proposed 
contract would start on or about August 1, 2024, and would include, but not be 
limited to, the services listed below.  
 

1. Attendance at regularly scheduled evening meetings of the Common 
Council and Plan Commission 

2.  Attendance at periodically scheduled meetings of the Board of Zoning 
Appeals, Board of Review, Council committees, and other bodies, as 
required  

3.  Preparing legal opinions for the mayor, Common Council, city   
     administrator and authorized City employees on matters involving City  
     business 
4.  Ensuring the constitutionality of City ordinances as they relate to existing  
     laws (or changes in law) at both the state and federal levels, and initiating  
     ordinance amendments as needed   
5.  Reviewing and drafting contracts, resolutions, and ordinances  
6.  Reviewing and revising development agreements, purchase agreements,  
     and other necessary documentation for land sales 
7.  Reviewing and drafting easements 
8.  Advising on zoning and land use matters, including land divisions,  
     condemnations, and annexations  

          9.  Reviewing notices of claims against the City and advising the City in  
               response to litigation 
          10.  Advising on the issuance and administration of liquor licenses and other  

       City permits and licenses 
11.  Providing guidance to the Common Council and City employees on  
       Wisconsin’s open meeting laws, Wisconsin’s public records laws, and  
       ethics laws 
12.  Representing the City on matters before the Public Service Commission  
       and Department of Natural Resources; and 
13.  Providing such other services as needed by the City 
  

For additional information about the duties of the city attorney, please review the 
Elkhorn City Code at 
https://library.municode.com/wi/elkhorn/codes/code_of_ordinances . 

 

https://library.municode.com/wi/elkhorn/codes/code_of_ordinances


5 
 

 
 

Special Considerations re Scope of Services 
 
1. Labor and employment matters, employee grievances, and disciplinary 
hearings are handled by separate, specialized labor counsel and are not part of this 
RFP. There may be, however, from time to time, matters pertaining to labor and/or 
personnel that will require coordination between the city attorney and the City’s 
personnel attorney.  
 
2. Historically the prosecution of routine ordinance violations, traffic matters, and 
DUIs in the Elkhorn Municipal Court have been handled by the city attorney. The 
Municipal Court is located at the Walworth County Government Center, which is 
located at 100 W. Walworth Street, Elkhorn, Wisconsin. Hearings are usually held 
the third Wednesday of the month.   
 
City Administration Building Office Hours 
 
The city attorney is not expected to maintain scheduled office hours at the City 
Administration Building. The city attorney may be asked to attend meetings at the 
City Administration Building outside of Common Council and committee/board 
meetings, but the city attorney may perform the majority of his/her work at the 
attorney’s normal business office.  
 

 
PROPOSALS 

 
Proposals Response Format 
 
Proposals shall be prepared simply and economically, providing a straightforward, 
concise description of the proposing attorney’s or attorneys’ capabilities to satisfy 
the requirements of the RFP. Emphasis should be on completeness and clarity of 
content and cost effectiveness of the proposal. As such, the City will accept 
proposals containing both technical and price proposal information in a single 
document submission. Accordingly, proposals should include the following:  
 

1.  A summary cover letter 
2.  Hourly cost for services, as well as other itemized billing that the City  
     would expect to incur or be responsible for  



6 
 

3.  Personal resume of the applicant and any associate(s) who may perform 
the duties of the city attorney. The resume shall include formal education 
and specialized training, professional experience (private, as well as 
municipal), involvement in community and professional associations, 
memberships held, and professional awards or recognitions received.  

4.  Summary of recent, relevant practice in the area of municipal law, such as 
drafting and interpreting ordinances or prosecuting ordinance violations; 
recodification; tax incremental financing; impact fees; development 
agreements; special assessments; real estate, easement or right-of-way 
acquisition/disposition; litigation; workers’ compensation; and other 
experience common to municipal government 

5.  List of references of other municipal clients 
6.  Statement of personal philosophy on how the legal affairs of a 

municipality should be handled, responses to City officials’ inquiries 
7.  Statement of how conflicts of interest or conflicts of time between private 

clients and the City will be dealt with  
8.  Any other information a proposer may wish to present in support of an 

application 
 
Proposal Submissions 
 
To be considered, proposals must be received by the city administrator no later 
than June 3, 2024 at 8:00 a.m. Proposals may be mailed or delivered 
electronically. Proposals delivered or received after the submittal deadline will be 
deemed late and rejected. There are no exceptions to this requirement. 
 
If submitting a proposal by mail, the proposal must be placed in a sealed envelope, 
plainly marked “Sealed Proposal for City Attorney Services” and addressed to the 
following: 
 

Adam Swann 
City Administrator 
311 Seymour Ct. 

Elkhorn, WI 53121 
 
If submitting a proposal electronically, please send it to Adam Swann, City 
Administrator, at aswann@cityofelkhorn.org.  
 
 
 

mailto:aswann@cityofelkhorn.org


7 
 

Proposal Evaluation Schedule 
 
The following chart shows the anticipated schedule of events for submitting and 
evaluating proposals. This schedule is subject to change based on the City’s needs 
and best interests. 
 
City issues Request for Proposals May 7 
Deadline for submission of questions 
related to RFP 

May 24 

Deadline for submission of proposals June 3 at 8:00 a.m. 
Interviews of selected candidates Week of June 10-14 
Potential action by mayor to appoint 
city attorney, with confirmation by 
Common Council 

June 17 

Potential Common Council action to 
finalize a contract with new city 
attorney 

July 2 or July 15 

  
 
City’s Rights and Options 
 
During the evaluation process, the City reserves the right to request additional 
information or clarifications from proposers, or to allow corrections of errors or 
omissions. At the discretion of the City, contractors submitting proposals may be 
requested to make oral presentations as part of the evaluation process.  
 
The City reserves the right to retain all proposals submitted and to use any ideas in 
a proposal regardless of whether the proposal is selected. Submission of a proposal 
indicates acceptance by the attorney or firm of the conditions contained in this 
request for proposals, unless clearly and specifically noted in the proposal 
submitted and confirmed in the contract between the City and the city attorney 
selected.  
 
The City of Elkhorn reserves the right to reject any and all submittals, waive any 
irregularities, reissue all or part of this Request for Proposals, and not award any 
contract, all at its discretion and without penalty.  
 
It is anticipated that the selection and contract negotiation with the city attorney 
will be completed by July 15, 2024.   
 



 
 

CITY OF ELKHORN 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-12 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN INTERFUND LOAN  

FROM THE CITY ELECTRIC FUND TO TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT #4  
 
 
 WHEREAS, Tax Incremental District #4 (TID 4) was created in the City on July 10, 2017; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, after the creation of TID 4, the City issued debt for the benefit of TID 4 
totaling $5,500,759 (via G.O. Bonds Series 2018A and 2018B); and  
 
 WHEREAS, since the creation of TID 4, the increment generated by TID 4 has not been 
sufficient to cover the annual debt service on the bonds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, during this time, the Electric Fund has lent money to TID 4 to help cover the 
shortfall; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Electric Fund has previously charged TID 4 interest at the annual rate of 
3.82% for the use of these funds (which is equal to the average rate paid by TID 4 for debt service); 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, for 2024 the total debt service due on the bonds is $420,995.00, but the taxes 
generated in the TID based on the 2023 assessment is $213,850.33, leaving a shortfall of 
$207,144.67; and 
 
 WHEREAS, TID 4 has no other means of obtaining the revenues needed to make these 
payments in 2024.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE FOLLOWING IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the 
Common Council of the City of Elkhorn, Walworth County, Wisconsin:  
 

1. The City of Elkhorn Electric Fund will advance the sum of $207,144.67 to the City’s 
Tax Incremental District #4 in 2024 for the purpose of making principal and interest 
payments on the debt issued for the TID. 
  

2. The funds advanced by the Electric Fund to TID 4 will be charged an annual interest 
rate of 3.82%.  

 
3. The advance and accrued interest will be repaid by TID 4 to the Electric Fund as soon 

as the annual increment amount exceeds the funds needed for annual debt principal and 
interest payments plus administrative expenses.  

 
 DATED this                      day of                                     , 2024. 
       
             ____________________________ 
              Tim Shiroda, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
Lacey L. Reynolds, City Clerk 



PLAN COMMISSION – FINDING OF FACT 

DATE: May 3, 2024 
PROJECT: Ricardo Angeles, Ricky’s Place Restaurant- Outdoor dining 
PC ID:  E24.03.005 
ACTION: Conditional Use Permit 

The City of Elkhorn Plan Commission officially convened on April 18, 2024, to 
consider the Conditional Use Permit application submitted by Ricardo Angeles, 
Ricky’s Place Restaurant for outdoor dining. 

After considering the Conditional Use Permit application, the staff report, oral 
and written testimony, the Elkhorn 2040 Comprehensive Development Plan, the 
Zoning on the subject property, and other materials presented at the meeting, 
the Plan Commission does hereby make the following “finding of fact”: 

FINDING OF FACT 

1) The construction, maintenance, and operation of a restaurant with outside
dining on the subject property, if properly conditioned, are in accordance with
the intent and purpose of Chapter 17 (Zoning) of the City of Elkhorn
Municipal Code.

2) The construction, maintenance, and operation of a restaurant with outside
dining on the subject property, if properly conditioned, are compatible with
other uses permitted in the same zone or vicinity.

3) The construction, maintenance, and operation of a restaurant with outside
dining on the subject property, if properly conditioned, will not be hazardous,
harmful, offensive, or otherwise adverse to the environment.

4) The construction, maintenance, and operation of a restaurant with outside
dining on the subject property, if properly conditioned, will not be detrimental
to the value of the neighborhood or community.

Based upon the “Findings of Fact”, the Plan Commission motioned, seconded, 
and voted to recommend APPROVAL of the Conditional Use Permit application 
to the Common Council. 



CITY OF ELKHORN 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT No. 24-04 

 
RICARDO ANGELES, RICKY’S PLACE RESTUARANT, LLC – 1 N LINCOLN STREET 

 
 
Pursuant to Section 17.5-1 of the City of Elkhorn Municipal Code, “Outdoor dining” located at 1 N Lincoln Street, Tax 
Key Parcel YRW 00022A, shall be permitted as a Conditional Use. The operation at said location shall be subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

 
1. The project shall be developed in accordance with the plan of operations.  Any deviation from the approved plans shall 

require zoning administrator and/or Plan Commission approval. 
2. The total number of outdoor tables shall not exceed six (6). 
3. The tables and chairs shall not be stored outdoors from November-February. 
4. The times of outdoor operation shall be as follows: 10:30am-8:00pm Tuesday-Friday, 8:00am-8:00pm Saturday, and 

8:00am-2:00pm Sunday. 
5. Fencing material and height shall be approved by the zoning administrator. 
6. Outdoor seating shall never obstruct public sidewalks or pedestrian access. 

 
Failure to fully comply with the above stated conditions shall be considered grounds for revocation of this permit. 

 
Common Council of the City of Elkhorn 

 
By: ________________________________    Attest: ________________________________ 
                                   Tim Shiroda, Mayor       Lacey L. Reynolds, City Clerk 

 
State of Wisconsin     State of Wisconsin 
County of Walworth     County of Walworth 
Subscribed and sworn/affirmed to before me     Subscribed and sworn/affirmed to before me 
this__________  day of  ________________ 20__,   this_______ day of  ________________ 20__, 
 
           
                                              Notary Public         Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: ________________     My Commission Expires: _________________ 
 

 
By: ________________________________   ___________________________________ 

Owner       Tenant 
 

________________________________   ___________________________________ 
 Printed Name      Printed Name 
 
State of Wisconsin       State of Wisconsin   
County of Walworth       County of Walworth  
Subscribed and sworn/affirmed to before me    Subscribed and sworn/affirmed to before me   
this__________ day of  ________________ 20__,  this__________ day of  ________________ 20__, 
     
    ________________________________________ 
                                              Notary Public                 Notary Public 
   
My Commission Expires: _________________     My Commission Expires: _________________  
 
This instrument was drafted by: 
Allison Schwark, Zoning Administrator 



No Mow May is approaching. See if 
your Fox Valley community is 
participating this year. 
The conservation initiative started four years ago in Appleton and 
has taken root across the nation. 

Sophia Voight 

Appleton Post-Crescent 

0:42 
1:43 

APPLETON - Four years ago, Appleton became the first U.S. city to adopt "No 
Mow May," an initiative that postpones mowing lawns to enhance urban 

habitats for bees and other pollinators. 

Now in its fourth year, the initiative, which temporarily suspends enforcement 
of lawn mowing ordinances for the month of May, has spread to cities across 

the nation. 

While its popularity has taken root across the state, there are still many 
municipalities where residents will get a visit from the lawn police if their 
grass grows too tall. To make sure you're in the clear to let your lawn grow, 
The Post-Crescent compiled a list of Fox Valley municipalities where residents 
can participate in No Mow May and similar initiatives. 

Instead of lawnmowers, try goats:Goats with a big appetite are fighting 

Wisconsin's invasive plants one bite at a time 

Appleton continues its No Mow May tradition 

https://www.postcrescent.com/staff/9329941002/sophia-voight/
https://www.postcrescent.com/story/news/local/2020/04/08/appleton-residents-can-skip-lawn-mowing-next-month-aid-pollinators/2956127001/
https://www.postcrescent.com/story/news/local/2020/04/08/appleton-residents-can-skip-lawn-mowing-next-month-aid-pollinators/2956127001/
https://www.postcrescent.com/story/news/local/2022/10/05/wisconsin-uses-goats-manage-invasive-species-buckthorn-honeysuckle-kaukauna-wausau/8119843001/
https://www.postcrescent.com/story/news/local/2022/10/05/wisconsin-uses-goats-manage-invasive-species-buckthorn-honeysuckle-kaukauna-wausau/8119843001/
https://www.postcrescent.com/staff/9329941002/sophia-voight/


 

As the progenitor of No Mow May, the initiative has become a permanent 
fixture of the city's environmental efforts. 

In Appleton, residents are exempt from the city's ordinance that restricts the 
height of grass and weeds to 8 inches on developed lots for the month of May. 

The program is voluntary, and residents are not required to sign up with the 

city if they wish to participate. 

Hortonville municipal lawns participate in No Mow 
May, too 

Like Appleton, Hortonville suspends its tall grass and noxious weed ordinance 

for May to allow residents to grow out their lawns. 



The village also participates in the annual tradition on all village properties, 
according to Public Works Department Director Aaron Steber. 

No Mow May signs are available at the village office if participants wish to 
place them in their yards. 

Oshkosh requires homeowners to register for No Mow 
May 

 

Participation in No Mow May is free and voluntary, but Oshkosh homeowners 
who wish to let their grass run wild for the month must register on the city’s 
website through the “Hot Topics” section or via the Connect Oshkosh app for 
mobile devices. 

Kaukauna's Slow-Mow Summer expands beyond May 

Last year, Kaukauna began taking a different, broader approach toward 

promoting pollinator-friendly habitats in the city year-long. 

https://www.postcrescent.com/story/news/local/2024/04/15/no-mow-may-in-oshkosh-grow-grass-long-help-early-pollinators-bees/73291290007/


Slow-Mow Summer differs from the traditional No Mow May as it still 
requires property owners to mow their lawns but asks them to let their grass 
gross a little longer before mowing throughout the spring and summer before 
cutting it back. 

In addition to less mowing, the initiative also encourages people to eliminate 
or reduce pesticide use, plant native plants and not clear out plants that are 
done growing or fallen leaves out of garden beds in the fall. 

Menasha opts for a low mow May 

In a compromise to No Mow May, last year the Menasha Sustainability 
Committee encouraged residents to try Low Mow May instead. 

Under Low Mow May, residents are still required to keep their lawns under 

the eight-inch yard ordinance but are encouraged to mow less often. 

The city encourages residents to raise the blades on their mowers to four 
inches and mow once their grass reaches six inches. 

Duke Behnke contributed to this report. 

Sophia Voight covers local government and politics in the Fox Valley for The 
Post-Crescent. She can be reached with feedback and story tips at 
svoight@postcrescent.com 

 

https://www.postcrescent.com/story/news/local/2023/05/18/kaukauna-encourages-slow-mow-summer-for-pollinator-friendly-habitats/70164129007/
https://www.postcrescent.com/story/news/local/2023/05/01/no-mow-may-returns-to-appleton-other-cities-support-pollinators/70155710007/




���������	�
���



���������	�
���


	07b Resolution 24-11 Approving Engagement Agreement for Interim City Attorney.pdf
	Resolution 24-11 Approving Engagement Agreement for Interim City Attorney
	24-04-30-Engagement Letter
	Blank Page

	ADP1B8B.tmp
	RESOLUTION NO. 24-12
	A Resolution AUTHORIZING AN INTERFUND LOAN
	FROM THE CITY ELECTRIC FUND TO TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT #4


	07f 1 N Lincoln Ricky's Restaurant CUP.FOF.pdf
	ADPE6EF.tmp
	Owner       Tenant
	Printed Name      Printed Name


	07g Waunakee Village Board & Appleton Post Crescent article.pdf
	ADP8C43.tmp
	No Mow May is approaching. See if your Fox Valley community is participating this year.
	The conservation initiative started four years ago in Appleton and has taken root across the nation.
	Appleton continues its No Mow May tradition
	Hortonville municipal lawns participate in No Mow May, too
	Oshkosh requires homeowners to register for No Mow May
	Kaukauna's Slow-Mow Summer expands beyond May
	Menasha opts for a low mow May






